
 

Any documents produced by Aromas Tri-County Fire Protection District and distributed to a majority of the board 
regarding any item on the agenda will be made available at the Aromas fire station located at 492 Carpenteria, 
Aromas, CA during normal business hours.  

 

1 

AROMAS TRI-COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MEETING NOTICE & AGENDA 
 
 

Monday – September 11, 2023 - 6:30 p.m. 
492 Carpenteria, Aromas CA 95004 

 
Zoom Meeting 

 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82023570041?pwd=V3UvRkdUcHp1QTZwRGlqU2pQbDJ2d

z09- or call (669)444-9171-Meeting ID: 820 2357 0041-Passcode: 120905 

 
ROLL CALL: Miller    Mortan  Mesiroff      __ Stottrup_____ 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Director Miller 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 6:30 P.M. - Opportunity to address the Board on items of interest 
not appearing on the agenda.  No action may be taken unless provided by Government 
Code 54954.2 (speakers are limited to 5 minutes).  The public may comment on any 
matter listed on the agenda at the time the matter is being considered by the Board. 
 
Opportunity to address the Board of Directors on items appearing on the agenda before 
or during the boards consideration of the item that is within the subject matter. Speakers 
are limited to three minutes. Government Code Section 54954.3 (a) 
 
DIRECTORS COMMENT PERIOD 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

1. Receive and consider Resolution No. 2023-11 proclaiming a state of emergency 
and authorizing remote teleconferencing of district legislative bodies.      ACTION  
 

2. Approve minutes May 16, 2023 and July 18, 2023 regular meeting and Special  
Meeting on August 8, 2023.                         ACTION                                                    
 

3. Approve checks for August and September 2023.              ACTION 
               

GENERAL BUSINESS 
 

4. Receive report of operations, training, and fire prevention. 

5. Receive a staff report and consider amended Auto Aid Agreement with Hollister City Fire. 

                                                                                                                              ACTION  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82023570041?pwd=V3UvRkdUcHp1QTZwRGlqU2pQbDJ2dz09-
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82023570041?pwd=V3UvRkdUcHp1QTZwRGlqU2pQbDJ2dz09-


 

Any documents produced by Aromas Tri-County Fire Protection District and distributed to a majority of the board 
regarding any item on the agenda will be made available at the Aromas fire station located at 492 Carpenteria, 
Aromas, CA during normal business hours.  

 

2 

6. Receive a staff report and consider amended Auto Aid Agreement with North County 
Fire Protection District.                                                                             ACTION 
 

7. Receive and consider a staff report to update Key Executives for bank accounts.  
                                                                ACTION 
 

8. Receive and consider Resolution No. 2023-12 approving CAL FIRE Agreement 
#7GF23001 for a VFC Grant.                            
                                                                                    ACTION 
 

9. Receive and consider Resolution No. 2023-13 approving CDF Contract 
Agreement #4CA06333.                                                                            ACTION                                                                                                
 

PUBLIC HEARING 7:30 P.M. Final Budget for fiscal year 2023-24 
 
 

10. Receive proposed final budget for fiscal year 2023-24. 
 

10a. Receive public comment on the proposed final budget.  
 
10b. Consider approval of Resolution No. 2023-14 adopting a final budget of 
$2,873,050 for fiscal year 2023-24.           ACTION 

 
11. Receive staff report on reserve funds distribution for fiscal year 2023-24 

 
11a. Consider and approve Resolution No. 2023-15 allocating district reserve 
funds for fiscal year 2023-24.                      ACTION 

 
12. Receive staff report on property tax appropriations limit for fiscal year 2023-24 

 
12a. Consider and approve Resolution No. 2023-16 establishing property tax 
appropriations limit.                        ACTION 
 

FINANCIAL 
  

13. Receive budget status report. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
 
This section of the Board’s briefing binder includes copies of miscellaneous 
communications placed in the Board’s Information Reading File during the past month. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Consider motion to adjourn to the regular meeting on November 14, 2023 at 6:30 p.m. 
at the Aromas Tri-County fire station, 492 Carpenteria Road, Aromas, California. 



Admin is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 

Topic: Aromas Board Meeting 

Time: Sep 11, 2023 06:30 PM Pacific Time (US and Canada) 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82023570041?pwd=V3UvRkdUcHp1QTZwRGlqU2pQbDJ2dz09 

Meeting ID: 820 2357 0041 

Passcode: 120905 

One tap mobile 

+16699009128,,82023570041#,,,,*120905# US (San Jose) 

+16694449171,,82023570041#,,,,*120905# US 

Dial by your location 

• +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 

• +1 669 444 9171 US 

• +1 719 359 4580 US 

• +1 253 205 0468 US 

• +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 

• +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

• +1 386 347 5053 US 

• +1 507 473 4847 US 

• +1 564 217 2000 US 

• +1 646 931 3860 US 

• +1 689 278 1000 US 

• +1 305 224 1968 US 

• +1 309 205 3325 US 

• +1 360 209 5623 US 

 

Meeting ID: 820 2357 0041 

Passcode: 120905 

Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kcIDMADkyg 



Before the Board of Directors, Aromas Tri-County Fire Protection District, 
County of Monterey, State of California 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-11 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE AROMAS TRI-COUNTY FIRE PROTECTIN DISTRICT PROCLAIMING 
A LOCAL EMERGENCY, RATIFYING THE STATE OF EMERGENCY 
PROCLAIMED ON MARCH 4, 2020, AND AUTHORIZING REMOTE 

TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS OF ALL DISTRICT LEGISLATIVE BODIES 
FOR THE FOLLOWING 30 DAYS IN ACCORD WITH THE RALPH M. BROWN 

ACT 
 

 FACTS 
1. The Aromas Tri-County Fire Protection District (District) is public entity established 

under the laws of the State of California. 
 

2. The District is committed to preserving and nurturing public access and participation in 
meetings of the District Board and Committees; and 
 

3. All meetings of District legislative bodies are open and public, as required by the Ralph 
M. Brown Act (Cal. Gov. Code 54950 – 54963), so that any member of the public may 
attend, participate, and observe District legislative bodies conduct business; and 
 

4. The Brown Act, Government Code section 54953(e), enables remote teleconferencing 
participation in meetings by members of a legislative body, without strict compliance 
with requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3), subject to the existence of 
certain conditions; and 
 

5. One required condition is that a state of emergency has been declared by the Governor 
of the State of California pursuant to Government Code section 8625, proclaiming 
existence of conditions of disaster or of extreme peril to the safety of persons and 
property within the state caused by conditions as described in Government Code section 
8558; and 
 

6. A proclamation is made that there is an actual incident, threat of disaster, or extreme 
peril to the safety of persons and property within the District’s jurisdiction, caused by 
natural, technological, or human-caused disasters; and 
 



7. State or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social 
distancing, or, that having the legislative body meet in person would present imminent 
risks to the health and safety of attendees; and 
 

8. The District Board affirms these conditions now exist in the District.  Specifically, on 
March 4, 2020, the Governor proclaimed a State of Emergency to exist as a result of the 
threat of COVID-19.  That Proclamation has not been terminated by either the Governor 
or the Legislature pursuant to Government Code section 8629; and 
 

9. Despite sustained efforts to remedy this circumstance, the District Board determines that 
meeting in person poses an imminent risk to health and safety of attendees due to the 
COVID-19 virus and its variants; and   
 

10. The District Board finds the emergency created by the COVID-19 virus and its variants 
has caused, and will continue to cause, conditions of peril to the safety of persons within 
the District that are likely to be beyond the control of services, personnel, equipment, 
and facilities of the District, and desires to proclaim a local emergency and ratify the 
proclamation of state of emergency by the Governor and similar local health orders that 
require social distancing; and 
 

11. As a consequence of the local emergency, the District Board determines that all 
legislative bodies of the District are required to conduct their meetings without full 
compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of Government Code section 54953, as 
authorized by subdivision (e) of section 54953, and that those District legislative bodies 
shall comply with the requirements to provide public access to the meetings as 
prescribed in paragraph (2) of subdivision (e) of section 54953; and   
 

12. Each District legislative body shall continue to conduct meetings with public access 
available via call-in or internet-based service options and the public shall be allowed to 
address the legislative body directly in real time; and 

13. This Resolution shall authorize the Fire Chief to establish and maintain platforms 
necessary for each District legislative body to hold teleconference meetings and provide 
an avenue for real-time public comments for such meetings; and   
 

14. The District Board finds the introduction and adoption of this resolution is not subject to 
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) as the activity is not a project as 
defined in Section 15378) of the CEQA Guidelines. 

 

 

 



 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF THE AROMAS TRI-
COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT: 

 
SECTION 1. RECITALS. The foregoing Findings are true and correct and are adopted 

by the District Board as though set forth in full. 
 

SECTION 2. PROCLAMATION OF LOCAL EMERGENCY. The Board hereby 
proclaims that a local emergency now exists throughout the District, and meeting in person 
would present imminent risk as a result of the COVID-19 virus and its variants. 
 

SECTION 3. RATIFICATION OF PROCLAMATION OF A STATE OF 
EMERGENCY. The Board hereby ratifies the Governor of the State of California’s 
Proclamation of State of Emergency, effective as of its issuance date of March 4, 2020. 
 

SECTION 4. REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS. The Fire Chief and 
legislative bodies of the District are hereby authorized and directed to take all actions 
necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of this Resolution including, conducting open 
and public meetings in accordance with Government Code section 54953(e) and other 
applicable provisions of the Brown Act. 
 
  SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE OF RESOLUTION. This Resolution shall take 
effect immediately upon its adoption and shall be remain in effect for a period of 30 days, or 
until such time the District Board adopts a subsequent resolution in accordance with 
Government Code section 54953(e)(3) to extend the time during which District legislative 
bodies may continue to teleconference without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision 
(b) of section 54953. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting on September 11, 2023 upon motion of 
Director _____________, seconded by Director _______________, and carried by the following 
vote, to wit: 

 

AYES: 

NOES 

ABSENT: 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________   _____________________________ 

President of the Board     Secretary of the Board 
 



















Date Num Name Memo/Description Amount

08/16/2023 5340 Alsco San Jose

-560.88 

08/16/2023 5341 Analgesic Services

-45.00 

08/16/2023 5342 AT&T 8317263130870, 8317263131130

-340.38 

08/16/2023 5343 Burton's Fire Inc.

-2,894.75 

08/16/2023 5344 CSG Consultants

-1,170.00 

08/16/2023 5345 Dalmatian Fire & Safety Accrount # ARO

-260.00 

08/16/2023 5346 Recology San Benito County Account # 409979

-600.89 

08/16/2023 5347 South Monterey County FPD

-455.86 

08/16/2023 5348 Streamline

-355.00 

Aromas Tri-County Fire Protection District

Check List 5340-5350
August 2023



08/16/2023 5349 US Bank

-1,390.93 

08/16/2023 5350 Verizon Wireless Account # 469987820-00001

-228.06 

Total -8,301.75 



Date Num Name Memo/Description Amount

09/08/2023 5367 Analgesic Services -588.50 

09/08/2023 5368 AT&T 8317263130870, 8317263131130 -123.84 

09/08/2023 5369 CSG Consultants -3,900.00 

09/08/2023 5370 Pebble Beach Community Services District -5,191.48 

09/08/2023 5371 Santa Cruz Auditor Controller -51,906.61 

09/08/2023 5372 Streamline -355.00 

09/08/2023 5373 US Bank -721.79 

09/08/2023 5374 Verizon Wireless Account # 469987820-00001 -228.06 

09/08/2023 5375 Recology San Benito County Account # 409979 -615.48 

total -63,630.76 

Aromas Tri-County Fire Protection District

Check List 5367-5375
September 2023



Aromas Tri-County Fire Protection District 
492 Carpenteria Road, Aromas, CA. 95004 

 
Staff Report 

September 11, 2023 

 

To: Board of Directors     

         From: George Nunez Jr., Fire Chief 
  By: David Rowe, Battalion Chief  
 
    Subject: Operations Report-Bi-Monthly Activity July 10, 2023- August 29, 2023 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

Operations: 
 
The district has no significant emergency responses to report on since the last board 
meeting.  
  
Personnel:  
No vacancies or employee absences to report.  

All funded positions filled and staffed.   

Engineer Onaka welcomed his first child baby Hadley on July 26th, 2023.   

E-4677 is fully staffed and assigned to Station #35 

 

Apparatus and Equipment: 
All front-line apparatus and equipment are in service. 

Brush 35 was rented by the State during the August heightened fire activity.  

 
Facility:  
Crack filing of the asphalt driveway and parking lot is underway, this is in preparation for 
a new topcoat to be applied soon  

 

 



Training:  
Interagency training organized by Chief Rowe took place August 15th at Driscoll’s and 
was a huge success thanks to the efforts of the station crews. 

 

Fire Protection & Planning 
Pre-plan inspections and updates continue at Monterey Mushroom, Driscoll’s, and 
Granit Rock.  

 

Prevention Education 
Aromas Day was a success with the CAL FIRE and Aromas Tri County crews making 
hundreds of positive public contacts.  

School programs are being scheduled with Aromas school. 

 

Fuel Reduction / Hazard Reduction  
Battalion Chief Rowe has engaged in preliminary discussions with cooperating agencies 
and entities to discuss the removal of hazard trees (eucalyptus) along Hwy. 101 near 
Rocks Rd./Cannon Rd. 

Aromas Chipper Program remains suspended. 

 

 

 

Response Times Greater Than 14min.   
Incident 
Number  Call Type  Response Time  Date  Location  

Reason of Extended 
Response      

 

                                   

BEU004275 
Vehicle 
Accident 16 7/21/2023 Hwy. 129 and Hwy. 101 Traffic / Distance  

 

BEU004340 
Electrical 
Hazard 35.33 7/24/2023 Murphy Hill Diverted from Another Call 

 

BEU004390 Medical Aid  18.1 7/26/2023 Brown Rd. Distance  

BEU004961 Gas Leak 24.4 8/24/2023 Marilyn Difficulty Locating Address  

BEU005019 
Electrical 
Hazard 17.38 8/27/2023 Twin Lakes Rd. Unable to Locate (Clock Runs)  

 



Response Activity Tally Report
 

Report Date 08/28/2023

Incident Number Street Address Date Alarm
Date Time

Arrival
Date Time

Basic Incident Alarm To
Arrival In Minutes

Agency Name: AROMAS TRI COUNTY FPD 27005

Incident Type Code and Description: 132 - Road freight or transport vehicle fire

23CABEU0004407 NB HWY 101 and SAN JUAN ON RAMP 07/27/2023 21:46:56 22:01:13 14.28

     Avg:  14.28

Incident Type Code and Description: 311 - Medical assist, assist EMS crew

23CABEU0004754 HWY 156/SB HWY 101 and ROCKS ROAD 08/14/2023 06:44:30 06:54:47 10.28

23CABEU0004246 341 MAHER Road and Btwn: 16299 BLK LITTLE HILL LN and 1
BLK PADILLA P

07/19/2023 20:45:54 20:55:02 9.13

23CABEU0004275 HWY 129 and SB HWY 101 07/21/2023 06:15:16 06:31:16 16.00

23CABEU0004388 17250 TAMARA Lane and Btwn: 510 BLK MAHER RD and 
DEAD-END

07/26/2023 21:10:10 21:20:46 10.60

23CABEU0004390 213 BROWN Road and Btwn: 852 BLK MERRILL RD and 744
BLK CHATEAU DR

07/26/2023 23:43:40 00:01:46 18.10

     Avg:  12.82

Incident Type Code and Description: 320 - Emergency medical service, other

23CABEU0004870 316 BARDUE Street and Btwn: 367 BLK BLOHM AV and 1 BLK
ROSE AV

08/19/2023 17:27:33 17:30:48 3.25

     Avg:  3.25

Incident Type Code and Description: 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

23CABEU0004718 786 SEELY Avenue and Btwn: 500 BLK KNOLL LN and  DEAD-
END

08/12/2023 17:17:53 17:23:07 5.23

23CABEU0004795 3515 PLEASANT ACRE Lane and Btwn:  DEAD-END and 2551
BLK SAN JUAN RD

08/16/2023 12:55:29 13:02:23 6.90

23CABEU0004881 601 CARPENTERIA Road and Btwn: 18600 BLK WILDA WY and
2673 BLK SAN JUAN RD

08/20/2023 07:43:09 07:49:15 6.10

23CABEU0004565 365 BLOHM Avenue and Btwn: 299 BLK MARCUS ST and 300
BLK BARDUE ST

08/05/2023 10:01:22 10:04:33 3.18

23CABEU0004591 NB HWY 101 and HWY 129 08/06/2023 13:11:55 13:23:00 11.08

23CABEU0005023 19346 OAK RIDGE Drive and Btwn:  DEAD-END and 180 BLK
DUNBARTON RD

08/28/2023 03:40:32 03:50:39 10.12

23CABEU0005025 670 COLE Road and Btwn: 344 BLK RICARDO DR and 800 BLK
DOROTHY DR

08/28/2023 05:37:54 05:47:11 9.28

23CABEU0004411 3515 PLEASANT ACRE Lane and Btwn:  DEAD-END and 2551
BLK SAN JUAN RD

07/28/2023 08:45:12 08:52:11 6.98

23CABEU0004429 575 SNYDER Avenue and Btwn: 517 BLK CARPENTERIA RD
and 1 BLK DODGE LN

07/29/2023 10:46:52 10:54:28 7.60

23CABEU0004457 CANNON RD/SB HWY 101 and CANNON RD/SB HWY 101 07/31/2023 15:05:23 15:08:00 2.62

23CABEU0004464 SB HWY 101/HWY 129 and SB HWY 101/HWY 129 07/31/2023 17:49:01 18:02:00 12.98

23CABEU0004613 100 KAREN Court and Btwn: 100 BLK SEELY AV and  DEAD-
END

08/07/2023 11:46:34 11:49:07 2.55

23CABEU0004631 330 MERRILL Road and Btwn: 1 BLK EMERALD WY and 1 BLK
ORCHARD HILL RD

08/08/2023 20:00:51 20:12:26 11.58

23CABEU0004655 1750 SAN JUAN Road and Btwn:  MURPHY RD and 1599 BLK
HIGHLINER DR

08/09/2023 22:59:51 23:08:18 8.45

23CABEU0004361 280 CARNEROS Road and Btwn: 3300 BLK CARNEROS CT and
 DEAD-END

07/25/2023 15:55:12 15:58:53 3.68

23CABEU0004335 1600 ROCKS Road and Btwn: 1 BLK LITTLE MERRILL RD and 
CANNON RD

07/24/2023 03:24:44 03:36:49 12.08

23CABEU0004055 2151 COLE Road and Btwn: 800 BLK DOROTHY DR and 3902
BLK ANZAR RD

07/10/2023 22:11:16 22:19:00 7.73

23CABEU0004049 240 SEELY Avenue and Btwn: 500 BLK KNOLL LN and  DEAD-
END

07/10/2023 18:01:19 18:03:52 2.55

23CABEU0004309 SB HWY 101 and SAN JUAN RD 07/22/2023 16:10:53 16:16:21 5.47

23CABEU0004307 1400 HWY 101 and Btwn:  SAN JUAN ON RAMP and  CANNON
RD

07/22/2023 12:34:24 12:43:13 8.82

23CABEU0004231 RIVERSIDE RD and ROGGE LN 07/19/2023 09:40:10 09:47:32 7.37

23CABEU0004184 3585 VIOLA Drive and Btwn:  DEAD-END and 371 BLK
CARPENTERIA RD

07/17/2023 08:38:36 08:41:20 2.73

Printed On: 08/28/2023 02:42:09 PM1 of 4



Incident Number Street Address Date Alarm
Date Time

Arrival
Date Time

Basic Incident Alarm To
Arrival In Minutes

23CABEU0004151 1400 HWY 101 and Btwn:  SAN JUAN ON RAMP and  CANNON
RD

07/15/2023 12:01:45 12:09:04 7.32

23CABEU0004134 3570 PLEASANT ACRE Lane and Btwn:  DEAD-END and 2551
BLK SAN JUAN RD

07/14/2023 13:26:14 13:32:02 5.80

23CABEU0004131 3570 PLEASANT ACRE Lane and Btwn:  DEAD-END and 2551
BLK SAN JUAN RD

07/14/2023 12:12:04 12:20:27 8.38

23CABEU0004077 577 CARPENTERIA Road and Btwn: 1000 BLK DEER RUN DR
and 1 BLK CARNEROS RD

07/12/2023 07:56:21 07:58:00 1.65

23CABEU0004047 272 MARSHALL Lane and Btwn: 272 BLK CARPENTERIA RD
and  DEAD-END

07/10/2023 16:51:45 16:55:41 3.93

23CABEU0004030 2594 SAN JUAN Road and Btwn: 3100 BLK SUMMERLAND RD
and 710 BLK CARPENTER

07/10/2023 04:58:50 05:06:04 7.23

23CABEU0004209 1415 COLE Road and Btwn: 800 BLK DOROTHY DR and 3902
BLK ANZAR RD

07/18/2023 12:11:41 12:23:37 11.93

23CABEU0004075 965 CHITTENDEN Road and Btwn: 1996 BLK SEARLE RD and
2351 BLK RIVEROAKS RD

07/12/2023 06:11:01 06:23:48 12.78

23CABEU0004072 3570 PLEASANT ACRE Lane and Btwn:  DEAD-END and 2551
BLK SAN JUAN RD

07/11/2023 22:22:32 22:30:57 8.42

23CABEU0004855 17170 TARPEY Road and Btwn: 3930 BLK GRANGER LN and
2265 BLK SAN JUAN RD

08/19/2023 00:11:36 00:20:45 9.15

23CABEU0004913 19324 OAK RIDGE Drive and Btwn:  DEAD-END and 180 BLK
DUNBARTON RD

08/21/2023 13:43:15 13:51:54 8.65

     Avg:  7.28

Incident Type Code and Description: 322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries

23CABEU0004228 SB HWY 101/SAN JUAN ON RAMP and Highway 101 07/19/2023 07:26:54 07:31:42 4.80

23CABEU0004329 SB HWY 101 and CANNON RD 07/23/2023 15:25:47 15:38:53 13.10

23CABEU0004341 1400 HWY 101 and Btwn:  SAN JUAN ON RAMP and  CANNON
RD

07/24/2023 13:16:48 13:27:56 11.13

23CABEU0004656 HWY 156/ and NB HWY 101 08/10/2023 06:06:07 06:13:18 7.18

23CABEU0004595 ANZAR RD  and FOREST RD 08/06/2023 15:54:30 16:01:48 7.30

23CABEU0004936 1853 RIVERSIDE Road and Btwn: 1 BLK MURPHY CROSSING
RD and  VANONI RD

08/23/2023 05:40:47 05:49:47 9.00

     Avg:  8.75

Incident Type Code and Description: 324 - Motor vehicle accident with no injuries.

23CABEU0004796 SB HWY 101 and Dunbarton Road 08/16/2023 13:22:57 13:36:40 13.72

23CABEU0004721 MAHER RD and ROYAL OAK DR 08/12/2023 19:40:37 19:52:02 11.42

23CABEU0004160 SB HWY 101 and CANNON RD 07/15/2023 16:42:30 16:51:01 8.52

23CABEU0004157 NB HWY 101 and CANNON RD 07/15/2023 15:55:49 16:05:06 9.28

     Avg:  10.73

Incident Type Code and Description: 412 - Gas leak (natural gas or LPG)

23CABEU0004961 1175 MARILYN Lane and Btwn:  DEAD-END and  HARRY
ELLINGWOOD RD

08/24/2023 16:33:36 16:58:00 24.40

23CABEU0004421 3215 HILLMAN Lane and Btwn: 16351 BLK BONNEY RD and 
DEAD-END

07/28/2023 15:35:05 15:48:52 13.78

     Avg:  19.09

Incident Type Code and Description: 421 - Chemical hazard (no spill or leak)

23CABEU0004438 1600 SAN JUAN Road and Btwn: 1 BLK SAN MIGUEL CANYON
RD and  MURPHY RD

07/29/2023 18:35:17 18:46:11 10.90

     Avg:  10.90

Incident Type Code and Description: 440 - Electrical wiring/equipment problem, other

23CABEU0004985 388 BLOHM Avenue and Btwn: 300 BLK BARDUE ST and 302
BLK CARPENTERIA RD

08/26/2023 05:30:44 05:35:55 5.18

23CABEU0005019 16545 TWIN LAKES Drive and Btwn: 640 BLK SAN MIGUEL
CANYON RD and  DEAD-END

08/27/2023 19:54:33 20:11:56 17.38

     Avg:  11.28

Incident Type Code and Description: 444 - Power line down

23CABEU0004502 2525 ANZAR Road and Btwn: 2039 BLK CANNON RD and 1 BLK
FOREST RD

08/02/2023 09:40:41 09:53:13 12.53

     Avg:  12.53

Incident Type Code and Description: 445 - Arcing, shorted electrical equipment

23CABEU0004340 18268 MURPHY HILL Road and Btwn: 1100 BLK FARASI LN and  07/24/2023 13:11:32 13:46:52 35.33

Printed On: 08/28/2023 02:42:09 PM2 of 4



Incident Number Street Address Date Alarm
Date Time

Arrival
Date Time

Basic Incident Alarm To
Arrival In Minutes

Date:

Agency Name:

Basic Incident Status (Fd1):

DEAD-END

23CABEU0004538 3860 BALLANTREE Lane and Btwn:  HARRY ELLINGWOOD RD
and 20100 BLK ROCK SPRI

08/03/2023 19:49:10 19:59:30 10.33

     Avg:  22.83

Incident Type Code and Description: 550 - Public service assistance, other (no fire)

23CABEU0004375 2594 SAN JUAN Road and Btwn: 3100 BLK SUMMERLAND RD
and 710 BLK CARPENTER

07/26/2023 12:43:33 12:48:21 4.80

23CABEU0004122 601 CARPENTERIA Road and Btwn: 18600 BLK WILDA WY and
2673 BLK SAN JUAN RD

07/14/2023 06:26:00 06:32:02 6.03

23CABEU0004734 601 CARPENTERIA Road and Btwn: 18600 BLK WILDA WY and
2673 BLK SAN JUAN RD

08/13/2023 10:55:50 11:00:22 4.53

     Avg:  5.12

Incident Type Code and Description: 611 - Dispatched and cancelled en route

23CABEU0004879 777 MAHER Court and Btwn: 671 BLK MAHER RD and  DEAD-
END

08/20/2023 02:19:09   

23CABEU0004826 NB HWY 101 and HWY 129 08/17/2023 21:34:28   

23CABEU0004960 SAN JUAN RD and EL CERRITO WY 08/24/2023 16:28:30   

23CABEU0004837 SB HWY 101 and DUNBARTON RD 08/18/2023 11:16:35 11:26:44 10.15

23CABEU0004461 SB HWY 101/SAN JUAN RD and SB HWY 101/SAN JUAN RD 07/31/2023 17:02:00   

23CABEU0004071 600 CARR Avenue and Btwn: 1 BLK PERSEVERANCE LN and 1
BLK ARRIBA DR

07/11/2023 17:24:09 17:29:00 4.85

23CABEU0004273 SB HWY 101 and HWY 129 07/21/2023 04:30:10 04:42:23 12.22

     Avg:  9.07

Incident Type Code and Description: 622 - No incident found on arrival at dispatch address

23CABEU0004545 708 CARPENTERIA Road and Btwn: 18600 BLK WILDA WY and
2673 BLK SAN JUAN RD

08/04/2023 10:02:36 10:05:29 2.88

23CABEU0004496 ANZAR RD/ and FOREST RD 08/02/2023 06:35:03 06:45:00 9.95

23CABEU0004420 AROMAS RD and BLOHM AV 07/28/2023 15:28:08 15:28:55 0.78

23CABEU0004543 1400 SB HWY 101/ and HWY 156 08/04/2023 07:52:07 08:03:37 11.50

     Avg:  6.28

Incident Type Code and Description: 631 - Authorized controlled burning

23CABEU0004610 1885 SAN JUAN Road and Btwn: 1599 BLK HIGHLINER DR and 1
BLK AROMAS RD

08/07/2023 07:37:32 07:45:31 7.98

     Avg:  7.98

Incident Type Code and Description: 730 - System malfunction, other

23CABEU0004639 339 RICARDO Drive and Btwn: 676 BLK DANTE ROBLES RD
and 241 BLK COLE RD

08/09/2023 11:28:30 11:39:31 11.02

     Avg:  11.02

Incident Type Code and Description: 743 - Smoke detector activation, no fire - unintentional

23CABEU0004050 16785 LITTLE HILL Lane and Btwn: 181 BLK MAHER RD and 
DEAD-END

07/10/2023 18:20:00 18:29:30 9.50

     Avg:  9.50

Incident Type Code and Description: 745 - Alarm system activation, no fire - unintentional

23CABEU0004449 665 FARASI Lane and Btwn: 900 BLK TOLSON LN and 18203
BLK MURPHY HILL

07/30/2023 18:42:56 18:54:20 11.40

     Avg:  11.40

     Avg:  9.09

     Avg:  9.09

Report Filters

is between '7/10/2023' and 'Today'

contains '27005'

Report Criteria

Is Not In Draft

08/28/2023

Printed On: 08/28/2023 02:42:09 PM3 of 4



Response Activity Tally Report
 

Report Date 08/28/2023

Incident Type Code and Description Incident Count

Unit: BEU

Agency Name: AROMAS TRI COUNTY FPD 27005

132 - Road freight or transport vehicle fire 1

311 - Medical assist, assist EMS crew 5

320 - Emergency medical service, other 1

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury 33

322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries 6

324 - Motor vehicle accident with no injuries. 4

412 - Gas leak (natural gas or LPG) 2

421 - Chemical hazard (no spill or leak) 1

440 - Electrical  wiring/equipment problem, other 2

444 - Power line down 1

445 - Arcing, shorted electrical equipment 2

550 - Public service assistance, other (no fire) 3

611 - Dispatched and cancelled en route 7

622 - No incident found on arrival at dispatch address 4

631 - Authorized controlled burning 1

730 - System malfunction, other 1

743 - Smoke detector activation, no fire - unintentional 1

745 - Alarm system activation, no fire - unintentional 1

 Total:  76

Printed On: 08/28/2023 02:54:26 PM1 of 4





         

Aromas Tri-County Fire Protection District  
2221 Garden Road, Monterey, CA  93940 

 
STAFF REPORT 

September 11, 2023 
 

         To: Board of Directors 
 
     From: George Nunez Jr., Fire Chief 
  By Nick Ciardella, Assistant Chief 
 
  Subject: Amended Auto Aid Agreement with Hollister City Fire  
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Authorize Fire Chief George Nunez Jr. to sign the attached amended auto aid 
agreement with Hollister City Fire.  
 
Issue: 
 
 Aromas Tri County Fire Protection District (ATC) response plan Engine #35 will have to 
respond to complex emergencies without any assistance when CAL FIRE's Type III is not 
available for response.  
 
Discussion: 
 
  For over a decade ATC has heavily relied on the additional 3-person fire engine 
response to emergencies within the district facilitated by CAL FIRE Engine 4677 being 
staffed year around at Station #35. In recent years fuels management projects conducted 
year around by CAL FIRE have required E4677 spend significantly less time staffed for 
response within Aromas Tri County's district.  
 
     The amended Automatic Aid Agreements will ensure that for any call type that 
requires two or more fire engines to respond, Hollister City Fire will respond in the San 
Benito County portions of the ATC and North County Fire Protection District will respond in 
the Monterey County portions of ATC.  
 
    If the agreement is adopted in return for the additional assistance, ATC will 
automatically respond further into the San Juan Bautista and Prunedale areas for structure 
and vegetation fires. The agreement will have limited to no fiscal impact to any of the 
districts as the provisions of the agreement are for the initial response only and do not 
include larger scale incidents coordinated through CAL OES.      
 
 

 
  

   
 

 



AGREEMENT FOR AUTOMATIC AID 
AROMAS TRI-COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

and 
HOLLISTER FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 
THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into on this day, by and between Aromas Tri County Fire 
Protection District (hereinafter referred to as “ATC”) and the Hollister Fire Department (hereinafter 
referred to as “HFD”), collectively, the Agencies or Parties. 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
WHEREAS, ATC maintains and operates a Fire Protection Organization; and  
 
WHEREAS, HFD operates a Fire Protection Organization covering the unincorporated and 
incorporated areas covering San Benito County. 
 
WHEREAS, it is the desire of ATC and HFD hereto to render automatic aid to each other, utilizing 
the, “closest resources concept” for structure fires, wildland fires and motor vehicle emergencies; and  
 
WHEREAS, Automatic Aid shall mean “responding to an emergency in an adjacent fire district as a 
matter of initial assignment and, without being requested by the responsible agency”.  
 
WHEREAS, each party has the ability to provide the above desired automatic aid when not 
committed to another emergency.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of their mutual covenants, the Parties hereto agree as follows:  
 
1. Areas of Response:  
 

a. Within the Response Areas designated below, upon report of a code 3 emergency requiring a 
response of a minimum of two engines, HFD will respond with one engine. 
 

i. All locations within San Benito County, within ATC jurisdiction. 
ii. Highway 129, within ATC jurisdiction, including all side streets. 

 
b. Within the Response Areas designated below, upon report of a structure fire within HFD 

jurisdiction, ATC will respond with one Type 1 engine.  
 

i. Highway 101, between the ATC jurisdiction boundary and the San Benito - Santa 
Clara County Line, and all associated frontage roads. 

ii. All addresses and locations between San Juan Highway, San Justo Rd., Prescott Rd., 
San Juan Bautista City limits, Salinas Rd., the Monterey - San Benito County line, 
and the ATC jurisdiction boundary. 

iii. All addresses and locations within the San Juan Bautista City limits. 
 

c. Within the Response Areas designated below, upon report of a vegetation fire at all dispatch 
levels within HFD jurisdiction, ATC will respond with one Type 1 engine. 
 



i. Highway 101, between the ATC jurisdiction boundary and the San Benito - Santa 
Clara County Line, and all associated side roads. 

ii. All addresses and locations between San Juan Highway, San Justo Rd., Prescott Rd., 
San Juan Bautista City limits, Salinas Rd., the Monterey - San Benito County line, 
and the ATC jurisdiction boundary. 

iii. All addresses and locations within the San Juan Bautista City limits. 
 

d. Within the Response Areas designated below, upon report of a motor vehicle accident within 
the HFD jurisdiction, ATC will respond with one Type 1 engine.  
 

i. Highway 101, between the ATC jurisdiction boundary and the San Benito - Santa 
Clara County Line, and all associated side roads. 

ii. All addresses and locations between San Juan Highway, San Justo Rd., Prescott Rd., 
San Juan Bautista City limits, Highway 156, the Monterey - San Benito County line, 
and the ATC jurisdiction boundary. 

iii. All associated side roads of Highway 156 between the San Juan Bautista City limits 
and the ATC jurisdiction boundary, including, but not limited to, Rocks Rd. and the 
Rancho Larios Community. 

 
2. Command Authority 
 

a. When operating at an incident, each Party will use the command and tactical frequencies 
assigned by the jurisdictional agency’s Emergency Command Center or Emergency Dispatch 
Center.  

 
b. The first arriving resource to incidents will assume command with the expectation to 

transition command to the first arriving Authority Having Jurisdiction (AHJ) resource. It may 
be mutually agreed by the AHJ resource and initial Incident Command (“IC”) to keep 
command authority with the initial IC to continue flow of operations. The expectation is to 
eventually transition command authority to the AHJ Officer in charge. 

 
c. In no case shall the AHJ resource be canceled without approval of that agency’s officer in 

charge, however, resources can be reduced to “code 2” and continue to the scene.  
 

d. Parties shall ensure all participating firefighters wear full protective clothing and equipment 
when exposed to hazardous elements on the scene of an emergency incident.  

 
e. Responsible jurisdiction will utilize supporting agency resources to the extent required to 

bring emergency under control.  
 

f. Parties shall train together at least twice annually on Standard Operation Procedures that 
apply to each agency. Standard Operation Procedures must be utilized on all incidents.  

 
3. ATC and HFD shall hold each other harmless from liability for acts or omissions of the other, its 

officers, employees, or agents in connection with the performance of this Agreement.  
 
4. Compensation. 
 

a. All services provided by either HFD or ATC under this Agreement shall be performed 



without additional monetary compensation. The mutual advantages, protections, and services 
afforded by this Agreement are mutually agreed to be adequate compensation to both 
jurisdictions.  

 
b. Each party shall provide Worker’s Compensation for its own personnel while working under 

this agreement.  
 

c. If aid is requested for more than 2 hours at motor vehicle accident incidents, 4 hours at 
structure fire incidents, and 12 hours at vegetation fire incidents, the AHJ may be billed at the 
rates established in the California Fire Assistance Agreement. Exceptions to cost 
reimbursements may be agreed upon between the Parties’ Agency Representatives and ICs. 
Any requests for aid not covered in this Agreement shall be handled under the day-to-day 
Mutual Aid.  

 
5. The responsible jurisdiction, when on the scene, shall be responsible for filing, and storing all 

required reports. If the responsible jurisdiction is not on the scene, the jurisdiction providing aid 
shall be responsible for filing, recording, and storing of all required reports to local or state 
agencies according to its standard procedure.  

 
6. This Agreement contains all of the terms and conditions agreed to between the parties. Except as 

otherwise specified, this Agreement shall not be amended or altered without the written consent 
of the parties.  

 
7. The Fire Chiefs of the parties to this Agreement shall have the authority to amend the identified 

response areas on the attached map, and execute any documents required to implement such 
amendments. Any such amendments shall be mutually agreed upon and require the written 
consent of the Fire Chiefs of the Parties.  

 
8. This Agreement shall commence upon execution of the Agreement by both Parties, and shall 

remain in effect until modified or terminated. Both ATC and HFD will review and determine if 
the general public benefits from such agreement annually. Either Party may terminate 
participation in this Agreement after providing a 30 day advance written notice.  

 
 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as the day  
 
____of ___________, 2023.  
 
 
 
________________________________  
CALFIRE/Aromas Tri-Counties FPD  
George Nunez, Unit Chief  
 
 
________________________________  
Hollister Fire Department  
Bob Martin Del Campo, Fire Chief 
  



MAP ATTACHMENT 
HFD RESPONSE TO ATC 

 
 
 

 
  



MAP ATTACHMENT 
ATC RESPONSE TO HFD 

 
 
 

 
 



         

Aromas Tri-County Fire Protection District  
2221 Garden Road, Monterey, CA  93940 

 
STAFF REPORT 

September 11, 2023 
 

         To: Board of Directors 
 
     From: George Nunez Jr., Fire Chief 
  By Nick Ciardella, Assistant Chief 
 
  Subject: Amended Auto Aid Agreement with North County Fire Protection District  
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Authorize Fire Chief George Nunez Jr. to sign the attached amended auto aid 
agreement with North County Fire Protection District.  
 
Issue: 
 
 Aromas Tri County Fire Protection District (ATC) response plan Engine #35 will have to 
respond to complex emergencies without any assistance when CAL FIRE's Type III is not 
available for response.  
 
Discussion: 
 
  For over a decade ATC has heavily relied on the additional 3-person fire engine 
response to emergencies within the district facilitated by CAL FIRE Engine 4677 being 
staffed year around at Station #35. In recent years fuels management projects conducted 
year around by CAL FIRE have required E4677 spend significantly less time staffed for 
response within Aromas Tri County's district.  
 
     The amended Automatic Aid Agreements will ensure that for any call type that 
requires two or more fire engines to respond, Hollister City Fire will respond in the San 
Benito County portions of the ATC and North County Fire Protection District will respond in 
the Monterey County portions of ATC.  
 
    If the agreement is adopted in return for the additional assistance, ATC will 
automatically respond further into the San Juan Bautista and Prunedale areas for structure 
and vegetation fires. The agreement will have limited to no fiscal impact to any of the 
districts as the provisions of the agreement are for the initial response only and do not 
include larger scale incidents coordinated through CAL OES.      
 
 

 
  

   
 

 



AGREEMENT FOR AUTOMATIC AID 
AROMAS TRI-COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

and 
NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT OF MONTEREY COUNTY 

 
THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into on this day, by and between Aromas Tri-County Fire 
Protection District (hereinafter referred to as “ATC”) and the North County Fire Protection District 
of Monterey County (hereinafter referred to as “NCD”), collectively, the Agencies or Parties. 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
WHEREAS, ATC maintains and operates a Fire Protection Organization; and  
 
WHEREAS, NCD operates a Fire Protection Organization. 
 
WHEREAS, it is the desire of ATC and NCD hereto to render automatic aid to each other, utilizing 
the, “closest resources concept” for structure fires, wildland fires and motor vehicle emergencies; and  
 
WHEREAS, Automatic Aid shall mean “responding to an emergency in an adjacent fire district as a 
matter of initial assignment and, without being requested by the responsible agency”.  
 
WHEREAS, each party has the ability to provide the above desired automatic aid when not 
committed to another emergency.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of their mutual covenants, the Parties hereto agree as follows:  
 
1. Areas of Response:  
 

a. Within Monterey County, within all Response Areas of ATC jurisdiction, upon report of a 
code 3 emergency requiring a response of a minimum of two engines, NCD will respond with 
one engine. 

 
b. Within the Response Areas designated below, upon report of a structure fire within NCD 

jurisdiction, ATC will respond with one Type 1 engine. 
 

i. South of the northern boundary of NCD jurisdiction; and 
ii. West of the eastern boundary of NCD jurisdiction; and 

iii. North of the southern boundary of NCD jurisdiction; and 
iv. East of Elkhorn Rd., San Miguel Canyon Rd., Highway 101, Cross Rd., Pesante Rd., 

Crazy Horse Canyon Rd., Old Stage Rd., and all associated side roads within NCD 
jurisdiction. 

 
c. Within the Response Areas designated below, upon report of a motor vehicle accident within 

the NCD jurisdiction, ATC will respond with one Type 1 engine. 
 

i. San Miguel Canyon Rd., between Vega Rd. and Hall Rd. 
ii. San Juan Rd., between Allison Ln. and the ATC jurisdiction boundary. 

iii. Highway 101, between San Miguel Canyon Rd. and the ATC jurisdiction boundary. 



iv. Crazy Horse Canyon Rd., Mallory Canyon Rd., San Juan Grade Rd., Old Stage Rd., 
and all associated side roads and trails within NCD jurisdiction. 

 
2. Command Authority 
 

a. When operating at an incident, each Party will use the command and tactical frequencies 
assigned by the jurisdictional agency’s Emergency Command Center or Emergency Dispatch 
Center.  

 
b. The first arriving resource to incidents will assume command with the expectation to 

transition command to the first arriving Authority Having Jurisdiction (AHJ) resource. It may 
be mutually agreed by the AHJ resource and initial Incident Command (“IC”) to keep 
command authority with the initial IC to continue flow of operations. The expectation is to 
eventually transition command authority to the AHJ Officer in charge. 

 
c. In no case shall the AHJ resource be canceled without approval of that agency’s officer in 

charge, however, resources can be reduced to “code 2” and continue to the scene.  
 

d. Parties shall ensure all participating firefighters wear full protective clothing and equipment 
when exposed to hazardous elements on the scene of an emergency incident.  

 
e. Responsible jurisdiction will utilize supporting agency resources to the extent required to 

bring emergency under control.  
 

f. Parties shall train together at least twice annually on Standard Operation Procedures that 
apply to each agency. Standard Operation Procedures must be utilized on all incidents.  

 
3. ATC and NCD shall hold each other harmless from liability for acts or omissions of the other, its 

officers, employees, or agents in connection with the performance of this Agreement.  
 
4. Compensation. 
 

a. All services provided by either NCD or ATC under this Agreement shall be performed 
without additional monetary compensation. The mutual advantages, protections, and services 
afforded by this Agreement are mutually agreed to be adequate compensation to both 
jurisdictions.  

 
b. Each party shall provide Worker’s Compensation for its own personnel while working under 

this agreement.  
 

c. If aid is requested for more than 2 hours at motor vehicle accident incidents, 4 hours at 
structure fire incidents, and 12 hours at vegetation fire incidents, the AHJ may be billed at the 
rates established in the California Fire Assistance Agreement. Exceptions to cost 
reimbursements may be agreed upon between the Parties’ Agency Representatives and ICs. 
Any requests for aid not covered in this Agreement shall be handled under the day-to-day 
Mutual Aid.  

 
5. The responsible jurisdiction, when on the scene, shall be responsible for filing, and storing all 

required reports. If the responsible jurisdiction is not on the scene, the jurisdiction providing aid 



shall be responsible for filing, recording, and storing of all required reports to local or state 
agencies according to its standard procedure.  

 
6. This Agreement contains all of the terms and conditions agreed to between the parties. Except as 

otherwise specified, this Agreement shall not be amended or altered without the written consent 
of the parties.  

 
7. The Fire Chiefs of the parties to this Agreement shall have the authority to amend the identified 

response areas on the attached map, and execute any documents required to implement such 
amendments. Any such amendments shall be mutually agreed upon and require the written 
consent of the Fire Chiefs of the Parties.  

 
8. This Agreement shall commence upon execution of the Agreement by both Parties, and shall 

remain in effect until modified or terminated. Both ATC and NCD will review and determine if 
the general public benefits from such agreement annually. Either Party may terminate 
participation in this Agreement after providing a 30 day advance written notice.  

 
 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as the day  
 
____of ___________, 2023.  
 
 
 
________________________________  
CALFIRE/Aromas Tri-Counties FPD  
George Nunez, Unit Chief  
 
 
________________________________  
North County FPD 
Joel Mendoza, Fire Chief 
  



MAP ATTACHMENT 
ATC RESPONSE TO NCD 

STRUCTURE FIRES 
 
 

 
  



MAP ATTACHMENT 
ATC RESPONSE TO NCD 

MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENTS 
 
 

 

 
  



MAP ATTACHMENT 
ATC RESPONSE TO NCD 

MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENTS 
 

 
  



MAP ATTACHMENT 
NCD RESPONSE TO ATC 

 
 

 
 



         

Aromas Tri County Fire Protection District  
2221 Garden Road, Monterey, CA  93940 

 
STAFF REPORT 

September 11, 2023 
 

         To: Board of Directors 
 
     From: George Nunez Jr., Fire Chief 
  By: Nick Ciardella, Assistant Chief 
 
  Subject: Updating Key Executives 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:     
 
Authorize the following board members to be added/deleted as Key Executives for 
Well Fargo Bank.  
 
Added:                                                              Delete: 
Michael E. Miller, Board President  Kenneth Mahler 
Kevin L. Stottrup, Board Vice-President     James J. Miller     
Holly Ortiz, Board Secretary   Theresa Hall Volland 
       
      
 
 
ISSUE:  
 
Wells Fargo Bank requires updating Key Executives when there are changes to the 
board members for the District. New Key Executives will need to meet with the Board 
Secretary at Wells Fargo to be added.  
 
 
 
 
 

 



AROMAS TRI-COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
2221 Garden Road, Monterey, CA 93940 

 
STAFF REPORT 

September 11, 2023 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  George Nunez Jr., Fire Chief 

By Nick Ciardella, Assistant Chief 
 
Subject: Volunteer Fire Capacity (VFC) Grant Award    
             
 
Recommendation: 
 
       Consider and approve Resolution 2023-12, authorizing payment of funds to 
the District for the VFA Grant Award.  
 
Issue: 
 
     Funding of VFC Grant through the California Department of Forestry and Fire 
Protection, Agreement No # 7GF23001. 
 
Discussion: 
 
      Each year the District applies for grant monies for safety equipment, radios, 
pagers etc. through the VFC, part of the Cooperative Fire Assistance Act, which 
is administered by the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection in 
Sacramento.  
 
      The District was successful in obtaining a grant in the sum of $11,129.73 in 
which we are responsible for $5,564.86. 
 
  
 
 



1 
 

State of California  
Department of Forestry and Fire Protection (CAL FIRE) 

Cooperative Fire Protection 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

 
APPLICANT:   

PROJECT TITLE: Volunteer Fire Capacity 

GRANT AGREEMENT: 7GF23001 

PROJECT PERFORMANCE PERIOD is from date upon approval through June 30, 2024. 
Under the terms and conditions of this Grant Agreement, the applicant agrees to complete the project as 
described in the project description, and the State of California, acting through the Department of Forestry & Fire 
Protection, agrees to fund the project up to the total state grant amount indicated. 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  Cost-share funds awarded to provide assistance to rural areas in upgrading their 
capability to organize, train, and equip local forces for fire protection. 
 
Total State Grant not to exceed $ $11,129.73      (or project costs, whichever is less). 

*The Special and General Provisions attached are made a part of and incorporated into this Grant Agreement. 

 
 

 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY  

AND FIRE PROTECTION 
Applicant   

By 
 
 

 
By  

 Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
Title 

 
 

            
Title: David Scheurich 
         Staff Chief, Cooperative Fire Programs 
 

Date  Date 
 
 

CERTIFICATION OF FUNDING 
GRANT AGREEMENT NUMBER PO ID SUPPLIER ID 
             
FUND FUND NAME                                                        

General Fund 0001 
PROJECT ID 
354023DG2012166 

ACTIVITY ID 
SUBGNT 

AMOUNT OF ESTIMATE FUNDING 
$ $11,129.73 

GL UNIT 
3540 

BUD REF                                 CHAPTER 
001                                     12 

ADJ. INCREASING ENCUMBRANCE 
$ 0.00 

PROGRAM NUMBER ENY ADJ. DECREASING ENCUMBRANCE 
9999000FED 2023 $ 0.00 
ACCOUNT 
5340580 

ALT ACCOUNT 
5340580002 

UNENCUMBERED BALANCE 
$ $11,129.73 

REPORTING STRUCTURE 
35409206 

SERVICE LOCATION 
92750 

 

 
I hereby certify upon my personal knowledge that budgeted funds are available for this encumbrance. 
 
 
Signature of CAL FIRE Accounting Officer  Date 

 
 
 
 

Aromas Tri-County Fire Protection District



7GF23001 

2 
 

VOLUNTEER FIRE CAPACITY PROGRAM 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
 
 

DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY AND FIRE PROTECTION 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
Natural Resources Agency 

 
Agreement for the Volunteer Fire Capacity Program of the  

Cooperative Forestry Assistance Act of 1978 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered between the STATE of California, acting through the 
Director of the Department of Forestry and Fire Protection hereinafter called “STATE”, and 
____________________________________________________________hereinafter called 
“LOCAL AGENCY”, covenants as follows: 
 
RECITALS: 
 
1. STATE has been approved as a passthrough agent of the United States Department of 

Agriculture, (USDA), Forest Service for the purpose of administering the Volunteer Fire 
Capacity program in California, hereinafter referred to as VFC, authorized by the 
Cooperative Forestry Assistance Act (CFAA) of 1978 (PL 95-313, 92 Stat 365, 16 U.S.C. 
2106), as amended. 

 
2. This is a subaward under the 2023 Volunteer Fire Capacity Grant #23-DG-11052012-166 

awarded to STATE by the Forest Service on August 3, 2023. The Federal Assistance 
Listing for the award is 10.698, Cooperative Forestry Program. This subaward is funded 
solely with Federal funds and is subject to the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) 
guidance in subparts A through F of 2 CFR Part 200, as adopted and supplemented by the 
USDA in 2 CFR Part 400, and under certain terms and conditions to LOCAL AGENCY to 
assist LOCAL AGENCY to upgrade its fire protection capability.  

 
3. LOCAL AGENCY desires to participate in said VFC and agrees to the terms and 

conditions specified in the Procedural Guide for Volunteer Fire Capacity Program 2023. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed between the parties as follows: 
 
4. APPROVAL: This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and 

approved by the Department of General Services, if required.  LOCAL AGENCY 
may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 
 

5. INCORPORATION: The Procedural Guide for Volunteer Fire Capacity Program 
2023, submitted Application for Funding and associated Grant Assurances are hereby 
incorporated by reference as part of the Grant Agreement. 

 
6. TIMELINESS: Time is of the essence in this Agreement. 
 
7. FORFEITURE OF AWARD: LOCAL AGENCY must return this Agreement and 

required resolution properly signed and executed to STATE at the email address 
specified in paragraph 12, with a timestamp no later than December 1, 2023 or 
LOCAL AGENCY will forfeit the funds. 

 
 

Aromas Tri-County Fire Protection District



7GF23001 

3 
 

 
8.  GRANT AND BUDGET CONTIGENCY CLAUSE: It is mutually understood between the 

parties that this Agreement may have been written for the mutual benefit of both parties 
before ascertaining the availability of congressional appropriation of funds, to avoid 
program and fiscal delays that would occur if the Agreement were executed after that 
determination was made. 
 
This Agreement is valid and enforceable only if sufficient funds are made available to the 
STATE by the United States Government for the State Fiscal Year 2023 for the purpose of 
this program.  In addition, this Agreement is subject to any additional restrictions, 
limitations, or conditions enacted by the Congress or to any statute enacted by the Congress 
that may affect the provisions, terms, or funding of this Agreement in any manner. 

 
The parties mutually agree that if the Congress does not appropriate sufficient funds for the 
program, this Agreement shall be amended to reflect any reduction in funds. 

 
The STATE has the option to invalidate the Agreement under the 30-day cancellation 
clause or to amend the Agreement to reflect any reduction in funds. 

 
9. REIMBURSEMENT: STATE will reimburse LOCAL AGENCY, from funds made 

available to STATE by the Federal Government, an amount not to exceed $11,129.73 on a 
50/50 matching funds basis, for the performance of specific projects and/or purchase of 
specific items identified in Proposed Project, Application for Funding, attached hereto.  
Reimbursement will be only for those projects accomplished and/or items purchased 
between THE LAST SIGNATORY DATE ON PAGE 1 and JUNE 30, 2024.  This sum 
is the sole and maximum payment that STATE will make pursuant to this Agreement.  
LOCAL AGENCY must bill STATE at the e-mail address specified in paragraph 12, 
with a timestamp no later than September 1, 2024 in order to receive the funds.  The 
bill submitted by LOCAL AGENCY must clearly delineate the projects performed and/or 
items purchased.  A vendor’s invoice and proof of payment to vendor(s) must be included 
for items purchased. 

 
10. LIMITATIONS: Expenditure of the funds distributed by STATE herein is subject to the 

same limitations as placed by the VFC, upon expenditure of United States Government 
Funds.  Pursuant to 2CFR200.313 Equipment, subject to the obligations and conditions set 
forth in that section; title to any equipment and supplies acquired under this Agreement 
vests with the LOCAL AGENCY.  For any equipment items over $5,000, the federal 
government may retain a vested interested in accordance with paragraph 17 below. 

 
11. MATCHING FUNDS: Any and all funds paid to LOCAL AGENCY under the terms of 

this Agreement, hereinafter referred to as “VFC Funds”, shall be matched by LOCAL 
AGENCY on a dollar-for-dollar basis, for each project listed on attachment(s) hereto 
identified as “Proposed Project”.  No amount of unpaid “contributed” or “volunteer” labor 
or services shall be used or consigned in calculating the matching amount “actually spent” 
by LOCAL AGENCY.  

 
LOCAL AGENCY shall not use VFC Funds as matching funds for other federal grants, 
including Department of Interior (USDI) Rural Fire Assistance grants, nor use funds from 
other federal grants, including USDI Rural Fire Assistance grants, as matching funds for 
VFC Funds. 

 
 
 
 
 



7GF23001 

4 
 

 
12. ADDRESSES: The mailing addresses of the parties hereto under the terms of the 

Agreement are: 
 
LOCAL AGENCY:          

         
         
Attention:        
Telephone Number(s):       
E-mail         

 
 STATE:  Department of Forestry and Fire Protection 
    Grants Management Unit, Attn: Megan Esfandiary 
    P. O. Box 944246 
    Sacramento, California 94244-2460 
    PHONE: (916) 894-9845 
    E-MAIL: Megan.Esfandiary@fire.ca.gov  
     
13. PURPOSE: Any project to be funded hereunder must be intended to specifically assist 

LOCAL AGENCY to organize, train, and/or equip local firefighting forces in the 
aforementioned rural area and community to prevent or suppress fires which threaten life, 
resources, and/or improvements within the area of operation of LOCAL AGENCY. Project 
funds are not to be used for research and development. 

 
14. COMBINING: In the event funds are paid for two or more separate, but closely related 

projects, the 50/50 cost-sharing formula will be applied to the total cost of such combined 
projects. 

 
15. OVERRUNS: In the event that the total cost of a funded project exceeds the estimate of 

costs upon which this Agreement is made, LOCAL AGENCY may request additional funds 
to cover the Agreement share of the amount exceeded.  However, there is no assurance 
that any such funds are, or may be, available for reimbursement.  Any increase in funding 
will require an amendment. 

 
16. UNDERRUNS: In the event that the total cost of a funded project is less than the estimate 

of costs upon which this Agreement is made, LOCAL AGENCY may request that 
additional eligible projects/items be approved by STATE for Agreement funding.  
However, there is no assurance that any such approval will be funded.  Approval of 
additional projects/items, not listed on the Proposed Project application, made by STATE, 
will be in writing and will require an amendment. 

 
17. FEDERAL INTEREST IN EQUIPMENT: The Federal Government has a vested interest in 

any item purchased with VFC funding in excess of $5,000 regardless of the length of this 
Agreement, until such time as the fair market value is less than $5,000.  The VFC 
percentage used to purchase the equipment will be applied to the sale price and recovered 
for the Government during the sale.  This percentage will remain the same even following 
depreciation.  The Federal Government may not have to be reimbursed if the disposal sale 
amounts to a fair market value of less than $5,000.  LOCAL AGENCY will notify STATE 
of the disposal of such items. 
  

Aromas Tri-County Fire Protection District
2221 Garden Road 
Monterey, CA. 93940

Holly Ortiz

831-333-4645
holly.ortiz@fire.ca.gov

mailto:Megan.Esfandiary@fire.ca.gov


7GF23001 

5 
 

18. EQUIPMENT INVENTORY: Any single item purchased in excess of $5,000 will be 
assigned an VFC Property Number by the STATE.  LOCAL AGENCY shall forward a 
copy of the purchase documents listing the item, brand, model, serial number, any LOCAL 
AGENCY property number assigned, and a LOCAL AGENCY contact and return address 
to STATE at the address specified in paragraph 12.  The STATE will advise the LOCAL 
AGENCY Contact of the VFC Property Number assigned. 

 
19. AUDIT: LOCAL AGENCY agrees that the STATE, the Department of General Services, 

the Bureau of State Audits, or their designated representative shall have the right to review 
and to copy any records and supporting documentation pertaining to the performance of 
this Agreement.  LOCAL AGENCY agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for 
a minimum of five (5) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention 
is stipulated.  LOCAL AGENCY agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records 
during normal business hours and to allow interviews of any employees who might 
reasonably have information related to such records.  Further, LOCAL AGENCY agrees to 
include a similar right of the State of California to audit records and interview staff in any 
subcontract related to performance of this Agreement. (GC 8546.7, PCC 10115 et seq., 
CCR Title 2, Section 1896). 

 
20. DISPUTES: In the event of any dispute over qualifying matching expenditures of LOCAL 

AGENCY or audit findings, the dispute will be decided by STATE and its decision shall be 
final and binding. 

 
21. MONITORING: LOCAL AGENCY agrees to the monitoring of activities as necessary by 

STATE to ensure that the award is used for authorized purposes, in compliance with 
Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the agreement; and that 
performance goals are achieved.   

 
22. INDEMNIFICATION: LOCAL AGENCY agrees to indemnify, defend, and save harmless, 

the STATE, its officers, agents, and employees, from any and all claims and losses, 
accruing or resulting to any and all contractors, subcontractors, suppliers, laborers, and any 
other person, firm or corporation furnishing or supplying work services, materials, or 
supplies in connection with the performance of this Agreement, and from any and all 
claims and losses accruing or resulting to any person, firm or corporation who may be 
injured or damaged by LOCAL AGENCY in the performance of this Agreement. 

 
23. CIVIL RIGHTS: LOCAL AGENCY agrees to comply with civil rights requirements as 

detailed in the Complying With Civil Rights Requirements brochure (FS-850) and the And 
Justice For All poster (AD-475A). The poster is to be placed at all public point of 
contact/reception areas. 

24. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS: LOCAL AGENCY will comply 
with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a 
drug-free workplace by taking the following actions: 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, 
distribution, dispensation, possession or use of a controlled substance is 
prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 

 



7GF23001 

6 
 

 

1) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 

2) the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-
free workplace; 

3) any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee 
assistance programs; and, 

4) penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug 
abuse violations. 

c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

1) receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy 
statement; and, 

2) agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a 
condition of employment on the Agreement. 

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments 
under the Agreement or termination of the Agreement or both and LOCAL 
AGENCY may be ineligible for funding of any future State Agreement if the 
department determines that any of the following has occurred: (1) the LOCAL 
AGENCY has made false certification, or violated the certification by failing to 
carry out the requirements as noted above. (GC 8350 et seq.) 

25. TERM: The term of the Agreement SHALL COMMENCE ON THE LAST 
SIGNATORY DATE ON PAGE 1 and continue through June 30, 2024. 

 
26. TERMINATION: This Agreement may be terminated by either party giving 30 days 

written notice to the other party or provisions herein amended upon mutual consent of the 
parties hereto. 

 
27. AMENDMENTS: No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be 

valid unless made in writing, signed by the parties and approved as required.  No oral 
understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is binding on any of the 
parties. 

 
28. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: LOCAL AGENCY, and the agents and employees of 

LOCAL AGENCY, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an independent 
capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the STATE or the Federal 
Government. 

 
29. INDIRECT RATE: LOCAL AGENCY may not assess an indirect rate in excess of their 

Federally approved Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NICRA), a de minimis rate 
if LOCAL AGENCY does not have an approved NICRA, or the VFC program cap rate of 
10%, whichever is lesser. LOCAL AGENCY may also elect not to assess an indirect rate. 
The approved indirect cost rate at the time of execution is 0%. 

.    



7GF23001 

7 
 

30. MEDIA: LOCAL AGENCY shall acknowledge STATE and USDA Forest Service support  
in any publications, audiovisuals and electronic media developed as a result of this 
award.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

 
It is encouraged to give public notice of the receipt of this award and announce progress 
and accomplishments, acknowledging STATE and USDA Forest Service support. Follow 
direction in USDA Supplemental 2 CFR 415.2.  

 
31. ASSIGNMENT: This Agreement is not assignable by LOCAL AGENCY either in whole 

or in part.  
 
 
 



AD-1048 OMB No. 0505-0027 
Expiration Date: 09/30/2025

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion 
Lower Tier Covered Transactions 

The following statement is made in accordance with the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a, as amended). This certification is required by the regulations 
implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension, and 2 CFR §§ 180.300, 180.335, Participants' responsibilities. The regulations were 
amended and published on August 31, 2005, in 70 Fed. Reg. 51865-51880. Copies of the regulations may be obtained by contacting the Department of 
Agriculture agency offering the proposed covered transaction.  

According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, an agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to respond to a collection of 
information unless it displays a valid OMB control number. The valid OMB control number for this information collection is 0505-0027. The time required to 
complete this information collection is estimated to average 15 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. The provisions of appropriate criminal or 
civil fraud, privacy, and other statutes may be applicable to the information provided.

(Read instructions on page two before completing certification.) 

A. The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its principals is
presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation
in this transaction by any Federal department or agency;

B. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

ORGANIZATION NAME PR/AWARD NUMBER OR PROJECT NAME 

NAME(S) AND TITLE(S) OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE(S) 

SIGNATURE DATE 

In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and 
institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including gender 
expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/parental status, income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for prior 
civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all bases apply to all programs). Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or incident. 

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact 
the responsible Agency or USDA's TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program 
information may be made available in languages other than English. 

To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at How to File a Program Discrimination Complaint 
and at any USDA office or write a letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form. To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 
632-9992. Submit your completed form or letter to USDA by: (1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights, 1400 Independence Avenue, 
SW, Washington, D.C. 20250-9410; (2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or (3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender. 

https://www.usda.gov/oascr/how-to-file-a-program-discrimination-complaint
mailto:program.intake@usda.gov


BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
 Aromas Tri-County Fire Protection District         

COUNTY OF   Monterey   , STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
 

IN THE MATTER OF: 
 
Resolution Number:   2023-12  
Approving the Department of Forestry and Fire Protection Agreement #__7GF23001____________ for services 
from the date of last signatory on page 1 of the Agreement to June 30, 2024 under the Volunteer Fire Capacity Program of 
the Cooperative Forestry Assistance Act of 1978.  
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the  Aromas Tri-County Fire Protection District, 
that said Board does hereby approve the Agreement with the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection dated 
as of the last signatory date on page 1 of the Agreement, and any amendments thereto. This Agreement provides for an 
award, during the term of this Agreement, under the Volunteer Fire Capacity Program of the Cooperative Fire Assistance 
Act of 1978 during the State Fiscal Year 2023-24 up to and no more than the amount of $__11,129.73_____________. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that         of said Board 
be and hereby is authorized to sign and execute said Agreement and any amendments on behalf of the Aromas Tri-County 
Fire Protection District. 
 
 The foregoing resolution was duly passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of the  Aromas Tri-County Fire 
Protection District, at a regular meeting thereof, held on the 11 day of  September 2023,  
by the following vote: 
 
AYES:      _______________________________   
         Signature, Board of Directors Member 
NAYS:          
         ______________________________ 
ABSENT:        Printed Name and Title 
 

_______________________________ 
Signature, Board of Directors Member 

 
_______________________________ 
Printed Name and Title 

------CERTIFICATION OF RESOLUTION------ 
ATTEST: 
 
I _____Holly Ortiz__________________________, Clerk of the Aromas Tri-County Fire Protection District,  
County of  Monterey    California do hereby certify that this is a true 
and correct copy of the original Resolution Number  2023-12  . 
 
WITNESS MY HAND OR THE SEAL OF THE  Aromas Tri-County Fire Protection District, on  
this  11  day of   September 2023 . 
 

OFFICIAL SEAL 
OR NOTARY CERTIFICATON 

      
Signature 
 
        
Title and Name of Local Agency 
 

 



Aromas Tri-County Fire Protection District 
2221 Garden Road Monterey, CA. 93940 

 
Staff Report 

September 11, 2023 
  
        To: Board of Directors 
 
    From: George Nunez, Jr., Fire Chief 

Nick Ciardella, Assistant Chief  
 
Subject: Contract Agreement for Fire Protection Services 
             
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 2023-13 Cooperative Fire Protection 
Agreement between Aromas Tri-County Fire Protection District and the California 
Department of Forestry and Fire Protection.”  Staff additionally recommends the board 
authorize the Board President to sign said agreement.  
 
ISSUE: 
 
The Aromas Tri-County Fire Protection District has enjoyed a co-operative fire protection 
agreement with CAL FIRE since 1993.  Through this agreement the district has continued 
to thrive with new equipment, facility improvements and additional staffing.  Staff feels that 
the district board is pleased with the continuing operation. 
 
The current three-year agreement for fire protection service with the California Department 
of Forestry and Fire Protection (CAL FIRE) expired on June 30, 2023.  The proposed 
agreement, (attached) is very similar to the current agreement.  The term of this agreement 
is July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2026.   
 
The proposed agreement does not require a final budget attachment.   
 
  





































































              AROMAS TRI-COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
2221 Garden Rd, Monterey, CA  93940 

   
 

STAFF REPORT 
September 11, 2023 

 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  George Nunez Jr., Fire Chief 
  By: Nick Ciardella Assistant Chief 
  
Subject: Final Budget – Fiscal Year 2023-24 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Consider approval of Resolution No. 2023-14 adopting a final budget of 
$2,873,050 for fiscal year 2023-24. 
 
Issue: 
 
 Adopt a final budget for fiscal year 2023-24 prior to October 1, 2023.  
 
Discussion: 
 
   Section 13895 of the California Health and Safety Code requires fire 
protection districts to adopt a final budget on or prior to October 1 of each year 
after making any changes to the preliminary budget.   
 
At the May 16, 2023, regular meeting, the Board of Directors approved the 
preliminary budget of $2,140,750 for fiscal year 2023-24. The proposed final 
budget for fiscal year 2023-24 has the following changes.  
 

• Account 5090 – Added $1500 for household expenses 
• Account 5110 – Added $2,000 for Insurance-General 
• Account 5181- Added $190,300 for CALFIRE Schedule “A” contract 
• Account 5230 – Added $150,000 for Special Benefit Campaign 
• Account 5340- Added $5,000 for Taxes/Assessments 
• Account 5361- Added $12,000 for Capitalized Equipment (Compressor 

15-year maintenance) 
• Account 5362- Added $52,000 for Capitalized Improvements (one-time 

payment to Santa Cruz County) 
 
Attached is a proposed budget of $2,873,050 for fiscal year 2023-24.  
  
 







FY FY FY FY FY FY FY FY FY FY
2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28

Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
BEGINNING BALANCE:  July 1 $1,755,259 $2,116,054 $2,348,990 $3,135,569 $3,376,606 $3,303,432 $2,601,670 $2,078,440 $1,422,686 $684,780

Percentage change from previous year 9.3% 2.7% 7% 6% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Revenues:
     Property Taxes $1,468,410 $1,507,348 $1,623,998 $1,728,510 $1,901,824 $1,867,288 $1,941,979 $2,019,658 $2,060,052 $2,101,253
     Interest $44,726 $52,027 $28,880 $15,578 $46,794 $14,000 $14,000 $14,000 $14,000 $14,000
     Other Income $1,348 $36,957 $16,144 $862 $1,625 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000
     Reimbursements $1,369 $0 $23,940 $20,694 $107 $0 $21,108 $0 $0 $0
     Fire Recovery $12,800 $5,954 $5,140 $4,197 $2,940 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000
     Fire Inspections $840 $810 $6,090 $7,450 $5,632 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000
     Fire Assignments $85,793 $10,949 $193,760 $70,967 $9,235 $0 $72,386 $0 $0 $0
     Sale of Capitalized Equipment $0 $0 $12,601 $0 $24,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
     Fire Mitigation Fees $88,882 $82 $10,605 $894 $0 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000
     Proposition 172 Allocation $74,517 $78,808 $78,808 $82,681 $88,672 $80,000 $80,000 $80,000 $80,000 $80,000
     Monterey County Measure "A" Funds $3,979 $4,375 $4,631 $4,525 $4,318 $4,000 $4,000 $4,000 $4,000 $4,000

Journal Entry Adjustments $61,587
Total Revenues: $1,844,251 $1,697,309 $2,004,597 $1,936,357 $2,085,746 $2,031,288 $2,199,473 $2,183,658 $2,224,052 $2,265,253
Available Funds:

$3,599,510 $3,813,363 $4,353,587 $5,071,926 $5,462,352 $5,334,720 $4,801,143 $4,262,099 $3,646,738 $2,950,032
Expenditures:

     Operating Expenditures $93,232 $89,801 $97,510 $261,465 $308,584 $363,500 $363,500 $363,500 $363,500 $363,500
     Personnel Services (CDF Contract) $1,307,103 $1,337,301 $1,039,178 $1,265,969 $1,707,167 $2,223,050 $2,334,203 ########### ########### ###########

Total Operating Expenditures: $1,400,334 $1,427,102 $1,136,688 $1,527,434 $2,015,751 $2,586,550 $2,697,703 $2,814,413 $2,936,958 $3,065,631

Difference from Revenue $443,916 $270,206 $867,909 $408,923 $69,995 -$555,262 -$498,229 -$630,754 -$712,907 -$800,379

Reserve Account Expenditures

     Capitalized Equipment $22,177 $33,750 $36,990 $153,938 $93,359 $28,000 $20,000 $20,000 $20,000 $20,000
     Capital Improvements $0 $2,596 $3,549 $42,969 $14,850 $118,500 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000
     Capital Acquisition - Lands/Buildings $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
     Capital Outlay $60,945
Total Capital Expendutures $83,122 $36,346 $40,539 $196,907 $108,209 $146,500 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000

Total ALL Expenditures: $1,483,456 $1,463,449 $1,177,227 $1,724,341 $2,123,960 $2,733,050 $2,722,703 $2,839,413 $2,961,958 $3,090,631

ENDING BALANCE:  June 30 $2,116,054 $2,348,990 $3,135,569 $3,376,606 $3,303,432 $2,601,670 $2,078,440 $1,422,686 $684,780 -$140,599



           

Before the Board of Directors, Aromas Tri-County Fire Protection District, 
County of Monterey, State of California 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-14   )      
A Resolution Adopting a Final  ) 
Budget of $2,873,050 for Fiscal  ) 
Year  2023-24.     )   

 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FINDS, DETERMINES AND DECLARES AS 
FOLLOWS:  

 
1. California Health and Safety Code Section 13895 requires Fire Protection Districts to 

adopt a final budget on or before October 1 of each year. 
 

2. California Health and Safety Code Section 13893 requires Fire Protection Districts to 
publish a notice by June 30 of each year stating the place within the District where the 
Preliminary Budget is available for inspection and the time, date, and location of the 
public hearing for adoption of the Final Budget. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

1. The Board of Directors of Aromas Tri-County Fire Protection District hereby adopts a 
final budget of $2,873,050 for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 
2024 according to the attached budget detail. 
 

2. The Board of Directors of Aromas Tri-County Fire Protection District also approves a 
Cooperative Fire Protection Agreement with the California Department of Forestry and Fire 
Protection for fiscal year 2023-24. 

 
3. The Board of Directors hereby directs the Board Secretary to forward a certified copy of 

the final budget to the Monterey County Auditor-Controller.   
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of Aromas Tri-County Fire Protection 
District, Monterey, San Benito and Santa Cruz Counties, California at a regular meeting held on 
September 11, 2023 upon motion of Director ______________, seconded by Director 
_________________, and carried by the following vote, to wit: 

 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT:     ATTEST: 

 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 
President       Secretary  



AROMAS TRI-COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
2221 Garden Rd, Monterey, CA  93940 

   
 

STAFF REPORT 
September 11, 2023 

 
         To: Board of Directors 
 
    From: George Nunez Jr., Fire Chief 
  By: Nick Ciardella, Assistant Chief 
 
 Subject: Reserve Funds Distribution – FY 2023-24 
 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
 Consider approval of resolution No. 2023-15 allocating $3,303,432 in 
remaining district funds into established district reserve accounts for fiscal year 
2023-24. 
 

General Operating reserve:  $645,832 
    Building Reserve:           $1,276,700  
   Equipment Reserve:          $1,380,900 
       Total:         $3,303,432 
 
Issue 
 
Distribution of reserve funds for fiscal year 2023-24.  
 
Discussion 
 

The district ended fiscal year 2022-23 on June 30, 2023 with $3,303,432 
 allocated to reserve funds as follows: 
 
  General Operating Reserve         $   440,832 
  Building Reserve           $1,381,700*            
  Equipment Reserve           $1,480,900**  
      Total:         $3,303,432 
 

 
The Board established dedicated district General Operating, Building and 

Equipment reserve accounts and established guidelines for annual allocation of 
district funds as follows: 

 



General operating reserve: Be maintained at a minimum of 
25% of annual operating budget 
exclusive of capital improvements 
and capitalized equipment. 

 
Building Reserve *: As determined by the Board of 

Directors consistent with the 
district Capital Improvement Plan. 

 *  Contribute $10,000 per year for 
future projects. 

 
 
Reserve District Funds 
Page 2 

 
 
 
Equipment Reserve **: As determined by the Board of 

Directors consistent with the 
district Equipment Replacement 
Plan.  ** Contribute $50,000 and 
$10,600 per year for apparatus 
replacement and PPE 
replacement. 

 





 
 

Before the Board of Directors, Aromas Tri-County Fire Protection District, 
Counties of Monterey, San Benito and Santa Cruz, State of California 

 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-15  ) 
      ) 
A Resolution Allocating District  ) 
Reserve Funds for Fiscal Year   ) 
2023-24.     ) 
 
 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FINDS, DETERMINES AND DECLARES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. District Board Resolution No. 96-11 established dedicated General 
Operating, Building, and Equipment reserve funds, and established specific 
allocation criteria for each reserve fund. 

 
2. Resolution No. 96-11 also requires the Board of Directors to annually allocate any 

remaining funds after the close of the fiscal year on June 30 into one or more of 
these reserve accounts according to the established criteria. 

 
3. Aromas Tri-County Fire Protection District ended fiscal year 2022-23 on June 

30, 2023 with $3,303,432 in remaining funds. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 
 

1. The Board of Directors of Aromas Tri-County Fire Protection District hereby 
allocates the $3,303,432 in remaining funds from fiscal year 2022-23 as follows: 

 
General Operating Reserve:   $645,832 
Building Reserve:            $1,276,700 * 
Equipment Reserve:            $1,380,900** 
   Total:           $3,303,432 
 

  
2. The Secretary of the Board is hereby directed to mail a certified copy of this 

resolution to the Clerk of Monterey, San Benito and Santa Cruz Counties, Board of 
Supervisors 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting on September 11, 2023 upon motion of  
Director    seconded by Director    , and carried by the following  
vote, to wit: 
 
 AYES: 
 
 NOES: 
 
 ABSENT: 
 
              
President of the Board    Secretary of the Board 



 

Aromas Tri-County Fire Protection District 
2221 Garden Road, Monterey, CA  93940 

 
STAFF REPORT 

September 11, 2023 
 

         To: Board of Directors 
 
    From: George Nunez Jr., Fire Chief 
  By: Nick Ciardella, Assistant Chief 
 
Subject:  Appropriations Limit - Fiscal Year 2023-24 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 

 Consider approval of Resolution No. 2023-16 establishing an appropriations limit of 
$1,976,101 for fiscal year 2023-24. 
 
Issue: 

 
 Establish an annual appropriation limit as required by the California Constitution. 

 
Discussion: 
 

  Article XIII-B of the California State Constitution requires state and local government 
agencies to establish an annual property tax appropriations limit, as defined by that Article, 
by September 30 of each year. 
 

 The appropriation limit is calculated based on the limit adopted in the prior fiscal 
year, modified to reflect changes in the cost-of-living and population. This year’s calculation 
indicates the district will continue to be in full compliance with the law.  
 

 The remaining appropriation capacity is $553,788 or about 28.02% below the 
appropriation limit. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Appropriations Limit explanation 
 
Proposition 4, passed in 1979 (after prop 13), added Article XIIIB to the State 
Constitution.  This article establishes limits on the appropriation of proceeds of 
taxes.  In June of 1990, the voters passed Proposition 111 which updated the 
State’s appropriation limit to allow for new funding for priority state programs, 
while still providing an overall limit on state and local (districts included) spending. 
  
State and local governmental entities have an annual “appropriations limit” and are 
not permitted to spend certain monies which are called “appropriations subject to 
limitation” (consisting of tax revenues and revenues derived from taxes (e.g. 
interest), basically).  In general terms, the “appropriations limit” is based on 
certain 1978-79 tax revenues and has been adjusted annually to reflect changes in 
consumer prices, populations, and services provided by these entities.   
  
We calculate the appropriations limit each year.  It all started with a base tax 
revenue amount from the 78-79 fiscal year.  Each year, it has been adjusted based 
on cost of living and population factors.   
  
Carmel Highlands began to exceed their appropriations limits in the 1994-5 era, 
(prior to CDF), and had to go to the voters to pass an ordinance allowing the 
district to spend more than the limits.   (we can never take in more tax revenues, 
the override vote only allowed them to spend everything they collected, which was 
considered to be above their appropriations limit, according to the law).  If the 
voters did not approve the override, the district would have had to return the 
excess to the county.  (not the tax payers). The ordinance was good for a total of 
5 years.  Prior to the lapse of 5 years, the appropriations limits at Highlands 
started coming in line, and we have been OK since then.   
  
It’s now become an annual reporting requirement drill.  If we ever get out of snyc 
with our calculations, it could cause difficulties “down the road”.    
  
Aromas didn’t calculate their appropriations limits correctly beginning in  the early 
90’s, and it caused them to  come close to having to go to the voters in 1998, but 
they pulled out of it, for whatever reason (Population factors, and cost of living 
changed for the better for the districts). We went back and made some 
recalculations at Aromas, and their appropriations limit is comfortable, now.   











 

Before the Board of Directors, Aromas Tri-County Fire Protection District, 
Counties of Monterey, San Benito and Santa Cruz, State of California 

 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-16  ) 
      ) 
A Resolution Establishing the  ) 
Appropriations Limit   ) 
For Fiscal Year 2023-24.  ) 
      

 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FINDS, DETERMINES AND DECLARES AS FOLLOWS:  

 
1. Article XIII-B of the California State Constitution provides that state and local government 

agencies shall be subject to an annual appropriation limit as defined in the Article, and also 
specifies that the appropriations limit may increase annually by a factor comprised of the 
change in population combined with either the change in California per capita income or the 
change in the local assessment roll due to local nonresident construction. 

 
2. The California Department of Finance has reported that the change in population at -0.52% 

for Monterey County, and the change in California per capita income at 4.44%, resulting in 
an allowable change factor of 1.038969 for fiscal year 2023-24. 

 
3. Aromas Tri-County Fire Protection District’s appropriations limit for fiscal year 2022-23 was 

$1,901,982. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

1. The Board of Directors of Aromas Tri-County Fire Protection District hereby establishes an 
appropriations limit of $1,976,101 for fiscal year 2023-24. 

 
2. No action or proceeding shall be brought, the purpose of which is directly or indirectly to 

attack, review, set aside, void or annul the appropriations limit established by this resolution 
unless such action or proceeding shall have been filed and served upon the District within 
forty-five (45) days from the date this resolution is adopted in accordance with Division 9 of 
the California Government Code. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting on September 11, 2023, upon motion of Director 
_____________, seconded by Director _______________, and carried by the following vote, to wit: 

 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 

ATTEST: 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 
President of the Board     Secretary of the Board 
  
  



Expenses

   5060 Communications 1,024.30 

   5090 Household Expense 1,125.25 

   5120 Maint Equipment 3,480.75 

   5140 Medical Supplies 45.00 

   5180 Professional Service 1,340.00 

   5233 Fire Prevention 355.00 

   5260 Utilities 931.45 

Total Expenses 8,301.75 $                                         

Aromas Tri-County Fire Protection District

Budget Status Report 
August 2023



Expenses

   5060 Communications 351.90 

   5080 Food 157.00 

   5090 Household Expense 285.65 

   5130 Maint Bldg/Grounds 23.86 

   5140 Medical Supplies 588.50 

   5180 Professional Service 6,408.67 

   5233 Fire Prevention 355.00 

   5260 Utilities 780.76 

   5361 Capitalized Equipment 2,772.81 

   5362 Capital Improvements 51,906.61 

   Unapplied Cash Bill Payment Expense 0.00 

Total Expenses 63,630.76 $                                        

Aromas Tri-County Fire Protection District

Budget Status Report 
September 2023



Actual Budget Remaining % of Budget

Income

   4011 Property Tax 1,695,471.84 1,578,905.00 -116,566.84 107.38%

   4013 Current Unsecured 73,300.53 72,700.00 -600.53 100.83%

   4015 Current Supplemental 59,640.09 42,550.00 -17,090.09 140.16%

   4021 Prior Secured 9,838.06 9,000.00 -838.06 109.31%

   4023 Prior Secured Delinquent 7.24 10.00 2.76 72.40%

   4033 Prior Unsecured Delinquent 429.33 225.00 -204.33 190.81%

   4041 Prior Supplemental 1,016.75 2,700.00 1,683.25 37.66%

   4120 Mitigation Fees/San Benito 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00%

   4121 Mitigation Fees/Monterey 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00%

   4122 Proposition 172 Funds 88,671.48 80,000.00 -8,671.48 110.84%

   4123 CSA 74 Measure "A" Funds 4,318.37 4,000.00 -318.37 107.96%

   4311 Interest 46,798.06 10,500.00 -36,298.06 445.70%

   4421 HOPT 62,118.91 5,100.00 -57,018.91 1218.02%

   4960 Other Income 1,624.94 1,000.00 -624.94 162.49%

   4961 Reimbursements 106.65 -106.65 

   4962 Fire Recovery 2,940.00 5,000.00 2,060.00 58.80%

   4963 Fire Inspections 5,631.53 1,000.00 -4,631.53 563.15%

   4964 Fire Assignment Reimbursement 9,235.44 50,000.00 40,764.56 18.47%

   4970 Sale of Capitalized Equip 24,600.00 -24,600.00 

Total Income 2,085,749.22 $   1,867,690.00 $   218,059.22 -$     111.68%

Expenses

   5050 Clothing 5,600.00 5,600.00 0.00%

   5060 Communications 11,225.95 15,200.00 3,974.05 73.85%

   5080 Food 213.13 400.00 186.87 53.28%

   5090 Household Expense 10,457.65 9,200.00 -1,257.65 113.67%

   5100 Insurance- General 17,343.00 20,000.00 2,657.00 86.72%

   5110 Insurance-Workers Comp 1,996.00 5,000.00 3,004.00 39.92%

   5120 Maint Equipment 20,354.91 10,350.00 -10,004.91 196.67%

   5130 Maint Bldg/Grounds 5,383.42 5,500.00 116.58 97.88%

   5140 Medical Supplies 4,576.05 5,000.00 423.95 91.52%

   5150 Memberships 252.00 300.00 48.00 84.00%

   5160 Miscellaneous Expense 17.46 300.00 282.54 5.82%

   5160a Open House 569.59 2,000.00 1,430.41 28.48%

   5170 Office Expense 2,406.18 6,000.00 3,593.82 40.10%

   5180 Professional Service 28,159.04 26,900.00 -1,259.04 104.68%

   5181 CAL FIRE-Sch "A" Contract 1,682,722.61 1,655,000.00 -27,722.61 101.68%

   5190 Publications/Legal Notices 1,505.82 2,300.00 794.18 65.47%

   5220 Small Tools 1,498.40 2,250.00 751.60 66.60%

   5230 Election Expense 475.00 10,000.00 9,525.00 4.75%

Total

Aromas Tri-County FPD

Budget vs. Actuals: FY_2022_2023
July 2022 - June 2023



   5231 Hoses/Nozzles 1,560.49 4,500.00 2,939.51 34.68%

   5232 Training 7,000.00 7,000.00 0.00%

   5233 Fire Prevention 478.41 500.00 21.59 95.68%

   5234 Contingency 2,000.00 5,000.00 3,000.00 40.00%

   5235 MOU -Division Chief 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00%

   5236 Website 3,600.00 4,000.00 400.00 90.00%

   5250 Travel 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00%

   5260 Utilities 5,401.13 7,000.00 1,598.87 77.16%

   5290 Long Term Debt Engine 146,418.45 150,000.00 3,581.55 97.61%

   5340 Taxes 26,158.45 30,000.00 3,841.55 87.19%

   5345 Prior Year Expenses 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00%

   5360 Capital Outlay 8,200.00 -8,200.00 

   5361 Capitalized Equipment 62,505.92 75,950.00 13,444.08 82.30%

   5362 Capital Improvements 98,156.67 63,500.00 -34,656.67 154.58%

Total Expenses 2,143,635.73 $   2,140,750.00 $   2,885.73 -$         100.13%










































	ADP133F.tmp
	President of the Board     Secretary of the Board

	ADP82C5.tmp
	Staff Report

	ADP4008.tmp
	STAFF REPORT

	Agreement 7GF23001.pdf
	E-mail

	Agreement 7GF23001.pdf
	E-mail

	2023 VFC Resolution Template with Instructions (003).pdf
	Resolution Number:   2023-12
	Approving the Department of Forestry and Fire Protection Agreement #__7GF23001____________ for services from the date of last signatory on page 1 of the Agreement to June 30, 2024 under the Volunteer Fire Capacity Program of the Cooperative Forestry A...
	OFFICIAL SEAL
	OR NOTARY CERTIFICATON

	Approving the Department of Forestry and Fire Protection Agreement # 7GF23xxx  __ for services from the date of last signatory on page 1 of the Agreement to June 30, 2024 under the Volunteer Fire Capacity Program of the Cooperative Forestry Assistance...
	OFFICIAL SEAL
	OR NOTARY CERTIFICATON


	ADP1EEC.tmp
	STAFF REPORT

	ADP206A.tmp
	Staff Report

	ADP23D4.tmp
	STAFF REPORT
	September 11, 2023
	To:  Board of Directors
	From:  George Nunez Jr., Fire Chief
	Subject: Final Budget – Fiscal Year 2023-24


	Aromas Horse Blanket.pdf
	Horse Blanket

	ADPA16F.tmp
	A Resolution Adopting a Final  )
	Budget of $2,873,050 for Fiscal  )
	Year  2023-24.     )
	President       Secretary

	ADP5475.tmp
	STAFF REPORT
	From: George Nunez Jr., Fire Chief
	Issue
	Discussion



	ADP49E6.tmp
	From: George Nunez Jr., Fire Chief

	ADP8C8C.tmp
	A Resolution Establishing the  )
	Appropriations Limit   )
	For Fiscal Year 2023-24.  )
	President of the Board     Secretary of the Board


	ORGANIZATION NAME: AromasTri-County Fire Protection District
	PRAWARD NUMBER OR PROJECT NAME: 7GF23001
	NAMES AND TITLES OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES: 
	DATE: 


